
 

 
 
P.O. Box 1749 
Halifax, Nova Scotia 
B3J 3A5 Canada    

Item No.  14.1.1               
 Halifax Regional Council 

 June 13, 2017 
  

 
TO:   Mayor Savage and Members of Halifax Regional Council 
 

     
SUBMITTED BY:  

Jane Fraser, Acting Chief Administrative Officer 
    
    
DATE:   May 30, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:  Metro X Bus Donations 

 
ORIGIN 
 
Halifax Regional Municipality has received two requests for the donation of buses. The Town of 
Bridgwater has requested two, and the Halifax Christian Academy has requested one. 
 
 
LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
 
Halifax’s policy on the disposal/donation of Surplus Assets is contained in section 48 of the Procurement 
Policy (Administrative Order 2016-005-ADM). 
 

Section 48 – Disposal of Surplus Assets 
 
…  
 
(3) Surplus Assets shall be sold by the most effective means in order to obtain the highest 
net value for the Municipality. 
 
… 
 
(5) Notwithstanding subsection (3) of this section, Surplus Assets may be sold at less than 
market value or donated to a not-for-profit corporation, association, or entity or any 
Municipality, Crown Corporation, School Board, or any level of government. Such sales or 
donations shall be approved by the CAO unless the undepreciated value of the Surplus 
Assets exceeds $10,000, in which case such sales or donations shall be approved by 
Council. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that Halifax Regional Council approve the donation of two buses to the Town of 
Bridgewater and one bus to the Halifax Christian Academy, and direct the CAO to negotiate and execute a 
donation agreement with each recipient to transfer ownership of the assets of the buses “as is, where is”. 
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BACKGROUND 
 
The Town of Bridgewater has requested two buses to be used as a pilot to determine the viability of a public 
transit service; the town’s request is attached to this report. 
 
The Halifax Christian Academy is a non-profit daycare located in Timberlea.  The Academy provides an 
afterschool program for approximately thirty children.  They currently have one bus, which has been 
deemed unserviceable due to mechanical issues.  The proposed use for the bus is for transportation of 
children from the elementary school as well as school related field trips.  The Halifax Christian Academy’s 
formal request is attached. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
As part of their fleet replacement program, Halifax Transit is decommissioning its older Metro X buses.  The 
buses in serviceable condition that would be best suited for donation are bus numbers 516, 517 and 519; 
provided these buses are properly maintained, they may provide several more years of service. 
 
In donating these buses, the the Town of Bridgwater and the Halifax Christian Academy would be accepting 
the buses “as is, where is” with no risk to the municipality occurring with the transfer of ownership. The 
Town and Academy would be responsible for transportation of the buses to their location, as well as 
scheduling inspections with Provincial authorities to ensure they are roadworthy. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There is a limited market for these buses, an appraisal was completed, and it is estimated that Halifax could 
potentially sell these buses for between $5,000 and $7,000 each.  
 
Finance estimates the opportunity cost of not selling these assets, given their prevailing market price to be 
effectively zero. In addition, donation of these assets is consistent with Halifax Transit’s fleet upgrade 
strategy of replacing assets at the end of their economic useful life. In addition, administrative costs 
associated with selling low value public assets often make the sale process unnecessarily costly.  
 
 
RISK CONSIDERATION 
 
These buses would be donated “as is, where is” and Halifax would not be responsible for transportation, or 
future maintenance and as such there is no material legal or financial risk associated with the donation of 
these assets. 
 
 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
 
N/A 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
N/A 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
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Not to donate the buses. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 - Town of Bridgewater request for two buses 
 
Attachment 2 - Halifax Christian academy request for one bus 
 
 
 
A copy of this report can be obtained online at http://www.halifax.ca/council/agendasc/cagenda.php then choose the 
appropriate meeting date, or by contacting the Office of the Municipal Clerk at 902.490.4210, or Fax 902.490.4208. 
 
Report Prepared by: Bruce Wilson, Team Lead, Inventory Management, 902.476.8557 
 



Attachment 1

April 2, 2017 

His Worship Mayor John Savage and Councn 
Halifax City Hall 
PO Box 1749 
Halifax, NS 83J 3A5 

Dear Mayor Savage and Members of Reglonal Council, 

The Town of Bridgewater is embarking on a public transit pilot thls falJ. Our goat ls to provide a 
single-loop translt service throughout our town. Improving accesstbiUty to the breadth of our 
community for all demographlcs. 

Bridgewater Town Council finnly belteves It Is our obligation to the public to ensure that people 
from all walks of life, regardless of abUlty, age or tncome. are able to travel throughout Bridgewater 
In a reliable and affordable manner. 

To that end, we are looktng to the Halifax Regional Municipality for assistance In getting thls 
exciting project on the road through the donation of two of your 2009 GMC 5500 32-passenger 
buses which are scheduled to be decommissioned this month. It ls our understanding that the 
buses are valued at less than $10,000 each but It would mean a tremendous cost savings to the 
Town for establshtng a pUot publlc transit system. We are seeklng the donation of two buses to 
mtnimize service disruptions due to maintenance or breakdowns. 

Our staff have atready been In contact with your procurement department and It Is our 
underslandtng that there are buses available, but due to the value of the donation tt requires 
approval of reglonat council In order to proceed. We have Included a copy of lhls letter to your 
procurement department to begin lhe admbllstrative process required to consider our request. 

It is our most sincere hope that Hatif ax Reglonal Council will strongly constder approving the 
donation of the two buses so that the Town of Bridgewater can realize its goal of affordable, 
reliable publtc transit for all our resldents. 

lf you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Stncerely.,~ //. " 

Original Signed 

David MttcheH 
Mayor 

cc: Bruce Wilson, HRM Procurement 

60 Pleasant Street, Bridgewater. Nova Scotia B4V 3X9 
Tel; 902.543.4651 • FaK: 902.543.6876 

www.brldgewater.ca 
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Aprll 7, 2017 

Halifax Transit 
200 UsJey Avenue 
Dartmouth, NS 
Attn: Mr. Bruce Wilson 

Dear Mr. Wilson, 

A TT AC HM ENT 2 

Hffllmx CHRISTIBD HCftDEJll!j 

. 
We are a non-profit daycare centre located In Glengany Estates In Tlmberlea. We provide 
an after school program for approximately 30 children Crom the Beechville, Lakeside, 
Tlmberlea area, for which we transport chlldren from the local elementar,y school Our 
72 passenger school bus that we have been ~Ing bas recently been rejected due to major 
mechanlca! Issues. Besides the after school program, we also used this bus to take our 
daycare preschool children on field trips throughout the year. Now we are earnestly In 
need of alternate transportation and would Ilka to request the donation or sale of one of 
the Halifax Transit buses that you plan to retire. We serve approximately 75 famllles in this 
area and your contribution to our needs would be greatly appreciated. Thank you for 
considering our request. 

Sincerely, 

Original Signed 

Edna McLeod. Director 
llCA Early CbUdhood Centre 
902-876-1141 

901.475.l+U I wwwhali~.a I ll-tOownsAve.Hli.&x,NS,83N tY6 I 30cmrfeslbd.Ttmbertea.NS.631" IJ7 


